Town of Minnesott Beach
Planning Board Meeting Minutes
August 4, 2020 @ 6:00 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Adam Garfinkel, Richard Hughes, Mac Rubel and Janet
Armstrong. Via conference call: Amy Edge and Alan Asher.

MEMBERS ABSENT: none
OTHERS PRESENT: Town Manager Carolyn Braly and Becca Lang from Arlington

Chairman Garfinkel called the meeting to order at 6:00pm with a moment of silence and the
pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Chairman Garfinkel called for any discussion or revision of the March 3, 2020 minutes. Mr.
Hughes moved to accept the minutes. All ayes.

Chairman Garfinkel called for any discussion or revision of the August 4, 2020 agenda. Mr.
Hughes moved to accept the minutes. All ayes.

Public comment: none
Items for discussion and possible motion or action:

Amy Edge asked if Wayfarer’s Cove had gotten any permits from the town. Adam Garfinkel
said no. Mac Rubel said Wayfarers Cove had gotten a cease and desist order from the state
because they’d failed to get a permit from the state to change elevations. They were clearing
and leveling 3-5 acres of ground. This was when he broke the water line to residents on
Neuse River Road, Best Lane and the lower part of Bennett Road. There are still issues with
that a month later. Amy Edge asked if they were aware there were rules to follow. Mac
Rubel said they had been told by several different entities there was a protocol to be followed.
Folks are being more diligent to keep an eye on things happening there. The town was told
that Mr. Melo has hired an engineering firm and surveyor.

Arlington Place Phase 3 — Chairman Garfinkel thanked Mr. Rubel for looking over the plans
as presented to the town. He wants an effective flow of process. Becca Lang said the change
in plans presented were very preliminary. She said they are going by Ordinance Section
151.373 Change in Plan. She said they cannot move forward with the preliminary or the final
plat until they get an approval in change in plan. She said they are asking today from the
planning board is a review and, hopefully, an approval of their “change in plan.” Mrs. Lang
said they had indicated the desired changes and detailed the impact on all R-MU specification
requirements. Once the change in plans is approved, they can proceed with the preliminary
plans and plat. Mr. Rubel said it appears they have met the issues of density and other
requirements. He said you are asserting there are no changes in Phase 1 and Phase 2, so those
individual plats remain in force. Mrs. Lang said yes. Mr. Rubel said the Planning Board
would recommend to the Board of Commissioners that the Change in Plan conforms with the
Town’s Ordinances.



Mrs. Lang said CAMA had asked for a few minor changes. They are almost ready to submit
their final plans to CAMA. Chairman Garfinkel reported the Town had written a letter to
CAMA confirming a marina was allowed in the RMU zoning.

Mrs. Lang said she knew the square footage of Arlington Place does meet the RMU
requirement. Mrs. Lang asked if they would have to submit a preliminary and final plat for
every single lot? Mr. Rubel said they could not sell any lot until they have a final approval on
the Revised Master Plan, which is the entire subdivision with all of the permits in place, and is
then recorded in Pamlico County Register of Deeds. Chairman Garfinkel said the meat of the
Town’s Ordinances is the Preliminary Plat for a major subdivision and then approval of the
Final Master Plat. Mr. Rubel said Arlington Place would not have to go through the approval
process again unless they changed the plans as approved on the final master plan. Mrs. Lang
asked about designating some land for future development not knowing what the future holds.
Mr. Rubel said no that would not be approved. He said the town would be amenable to
changes if the future does not support the current plan. Chairman Garfinkel said the Planning
Board will work with Arlington Place within the constraints of the Town’s Ordinances.

Mr. Rubel said Mrs. Lang had emailed a question regarding the cottages. He said inside RMU
zoning there are specific pieces for multi-family areas and it refers back to RM zoning. He
said RM has been modified significantly from where it was before Phase 1 with the original
cottages to make it easier in terms of ownership. Arlington Place has the flexibility of saying
“within this larger area which we’ve designated as multi-family, here are the plans we wish to
push forward.” Mr. Rubel said as long as you abide by the maximum density, minimum set-
backs, square footage and access. He said when you get into higher density, the concern is
access for EMS and fire trucks.

Chairman Garfinkel said with this Change in Plan, he could not see anything glaringly outside
of the universe of possibilities. But, without specified plat specifics, the Planning Board can
only say to the commissioners that the plat appears to be within the conformity of the Town’s
Ordinances. He said he could comfortably say to the commissioners, it all looks appropriate.
Mr. Rubel said he did not see anything proposed in this plat outside of the existing ordinances
and moved to send this to the commissioners to approve the conceptual plans of the Change in
Plan as presented subject again to a detailed evaluation of the plat which will lead to a new
Preliminary Master Plan with the revised Phase 3 plat with documentation for approval.
Richard Hughes seconded. Chairman Garfinkel asked for a vote from the Planning Board
members: All ayes. (6-0) Chairman Garfinkel thanked Mrs. Lang.

Chairman Garfinkel reminded the members there is a vacancy on the Planning Board.

Chairman Garfinkel reported he and Town Manager Carolyn Braly were updated the Land
Use Ordinances to conform with the GS statute requirements. The NC legislature changed
how it codifies the rules governing zoning administration.

Chairman Garfinkel said the Town has not received any heads up with what is happening the
Wayfarers Cove Marina. Mr. Rubel said the controlling agent of the town is the Zoning
Administrator/Enforcement officer, Jeff Bland, and should keep a check on the marina.



Chairman Garfinkel said the town had talked with Mr. Melo and told him the town is willing
to work with him, but he had to conform to the Town’s ordinance requirements and request
permits.

There being no further business, Mr. Hughes moved to adjourn. All ayes.

Carolyn Braly, Town Manager



